

FIVE POINTS BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING August 11, 2021

<u>MINUTES</u>

Meeting Held: Wednesday, August 11, 2021, at 10:00 AM,

Virtual meeting held on ZOOM.US.

Attendance: The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Five Points Business

Improvement District, City and County of Denver, Colorado was called and held as shown above in accordance with the applicable statutes of the

State of Colorado, with the following directors present and acting:

Ryan Cobbins, President

LaSheita Sayer, Vice President

Nathan Beal, Treasurer

Haroun Cowans John Pirkopf Paul Books

Excused Absence:

Maedella Stiger, Vice President

BID Staff: Vincent Martinez, Downtown Denver Partnership

Kalisha Frazier, Five Points Marketing Group

The meeting was called to order by Board President, Ryan Cobbins at 10:04 AM.

Approval of Board Minutes – June & July 14, 2021

June Board Minutes - No discussion of the June Board Minutes was requested. Mr. Books moved to accept the June Board Meeting Minutes as presented. Ms. Sayer seconded the motion. Vote: unanimous in favor, motion passed.

July Board Minutes - No discussion of the July Board Minutes was requested. Ms. Sayer moved to accept the July Board Meeting Minutes as presented. Mr. Books seconded the motion. Vote: unanimous in favor, motion passed.

Treasurer's Report – June 2021

Mr. Beal gave the June 2021 Financial Report. A total of \$50,690 in expenditures was made in the month of June, which were then listed individually. The final account cash balance at the end of the month totaled \$255,002. Mr. Cowans made a motion to accept the June 2021 Treasurer's Report. Mr. books seconded the motion. Vote: unanimous in favor, motion passed.

MarCom Update

Ms. Frazier reported on the projects in progress. Jazz Along Welton took place during the MLB All Star Game weekend in July and the Negro League baseball card cut outs stayed up at Sonny Lawson Park through the end of July and received a large amount of positive feedback.

The committee is also looking at working with Curtis Park Neighbors and the Heart of Five Points Neighborhood Association to add to the annual Trick or Treat celebration that would add a small portion of Welton and possibly include the Clarkson Street closure and possibly Five Point intersection pedestrian plaza as a location for trick or treaters to get candy from representatives from Five Points businesses.

Additionally, the committee is working on getting everything set for holiday lighting in the trees along Welton and possible expansion of decorations throughout the corridor to better connect all the blocks in the BID.

Ms. Frazier is also beginning work on the 2nd annual Holiday Stroll on Welton. She and the committee are in the very early stages of planning. She has met with Ms. Sayer, who coordinated the effort last year, for information on the planning and execution of the event. Ms. Frazier shared the task sheet with the Board Members and asked that they consider where they will be able to assist in the event planning as well as execution the day of the event.

Ms. Frazier will also be utilizing the BID's social media channels and its other outreach tools to help spread the word of the City's upcoming Northeast Downtown and Five Points Area Plan Community Open House to be held later in August.

District Maintenance & Administrative Update

Mr. Martinez reported that Denver Forestry is working with their contractor to get the dead trees pulled from their pits throughout this month. CSG will then work with the City's contractor to remove tree grates so that the remaining stumps can be removed and allow the FPBID's contractor, SavATree, to come in and begin soil remediation. The goal is to start planting new trees in mid-September. The FPBID will then take over maintenance of the trees through its contractor. The team is expecting to plant some 30 - 35 new trees along the corridor.

Mr. Martinez reported that he was not able to make progress on the addition of information on the design review committee for the Five Points Historic Cultural District but hopes to have information ready in September.

Old Business

A. Charge Ahead Colorado Grant Award

Ms. Sayer announced that the BID has been awarded \$32,000 through the grant program. The grant will provide an 80% match for four proposed charging stations along the Welton Corridor between 24th and 28th Streets.

Ms. Sayer stated that the project must be completed by the end of the year as laid out in the grant guidelines. Ms. Sayer provided an example of a charging station that could be used on Welton.

Ms. Sayer is asking the board for permission to move the expense timeline earlier. The initial plan called for expenses to happen in 2022. Based on guidelines the expenses will need to be made in 2021 with reimbursement coming in early 2022.

Mr. Books clarifies that not only maintenance would be the responsibility of the BID, but also electricity and Wi-Fi. Mr. Martinez suggested that regular maintenance of the stations should be added to the budget for 2022 of around \$1,000 above any warranties if installed.

Voting will be held during the Budget Adjustment Discussion later in the meeting.

B. Seating and Plaza Enhancements Update - DOTI

Mr. Cobbins turned the conversation over to Mr. Boncore to discuss the near-term projects of the Northeast Downtown and Five Points Action Plan, specifically the Clarkson Street Closure, Five Point Intersection Pedestrian Plaza and planned pedestrian safety enhancements at 3 intersections along Welton at 24th, 25th and 29th Streets. These first phase projects are expected to be implemented this Summer and Fall.

Mr. Boncore briefly reviewed the process to date and discussed the upcoming Community Open House on August 25th to discuss planning for phase 2 projects and projects that have been identified for the long-term, but no city funding has been dedicated for yet.

Mr. Boncore noted that he is here today to discuss the two primary ways the City can move forward with the Point safety improvements. The basic version would not include "non-standard" elements which includes paint and post delineations and a street mural. The non-standard elements are not typically managed by DOTI and as a result are not included in their standard enhancements package.

Mr. Boncore included a rendering of what the improvements could look like with the non-standard improvements such as seating enhancements, temporary and planted trees and planting boxes, an overall more activated plaza. In order for the non-standard enhancements to be included, the FPBID would need to agree to take on the maintenance and management of the non-standard amenities.

Ms. Sayer asked if the right turn lane can be kept as is and all other portions of the improvements done. Mr. Boncore noted that that portion is pretty pivotal to the overall safety enhancements and felt it would be difficult to take that portion out.

Mr. Cobbins noted that the island seems to have been established somewhere around 2000 and the intersection is a bit of a safety hazard. Ms. Sayer noted that she believes it was developed about the same time as when light rail came in as a better turn option from Washing to 26^{th} Avenue.

Ms. Sayer noted that she is still against the changing of the intersection even in a temporary manner because of the iconic nature of this intersection. She noted her hope that the City will be open to the idea of taking away the closure of the right turn lane if the community gives feedback that the changes are not liked or are not safe.

Mr. Boncore noted that Denver Fire was asked for input on the change and worked with his team to understand how the turn would operate for their equipment. Mr. Boncore noted that in planning efforts the trade-off of an inconvenience to the auto for enhancements for pedestrian and bike safety was something the planning team was willing to make.

Mr. Books noted the difficulty of trying to activate areas along Welton on the track side and that at many of their properties, most activation efforts they make are on the cross-streets. He also mentioned a desire for something more creative than the typical white plastic posts that they have used at other closures. He also mentioned budgetary caution in committing to maintenance and management of amenities. Mr. Books noted that activation efforts in multiple locations along the corridor has been a long-time goal of the FPBID.

Ms. Sayer noted that the Five Point Intersection idea came about prior to plans for the Clarkson Street closure and she wonders if the change to this important intersection is really necessary now that the Clarkson Street closure is coming along

Mr. Cowans asked what the timing of implementation for this particular project is and for the Clarkson Street Plaza project. Mr. Boncore stated that they are trying to time both ares together with an opening date this Summer/Fall. An overall goal is to present this to the public as one large overall enhancement package.

As a follow-up question Mr. Cowans asked if after implementation it is still a possibile to reverse the enhancements if the community feels this doesn't work and what that process looks like. Mr. Boncore answered that DOTI would need to test the intersection out for 6 months to a year, if safety issues are growing or become a bigger problem, then it would be reconsidered to remove.

C. FPBID Assistance for Amenities

Mr. Cobbins noted that there are essentially two votes that need to happen. One in regards to the Board approving funding for maintenance and management of the non-standard elements to add those enhancements and then a separate vote related to approval of spending of funding originally considered for 2022 to this year in support of the Charge Ahead Colorado grant.

Mr. Cobbins noted that in preparation for the vote over maintenance of non-standard elements that it may be necessary to hold off and do a vote by email within the next week.

D. Budget Adjustment Discussion

Mr. Martinez showed the Board a graphic breaking down costs for management of the non-standard elements. The costs were based on work CSG does in downtown which includes set up and take down of seating and cleaning of the overall area. Mr. Books asked to find out from CSG what can be done to spend the least amount of money possible.

Mr. Martinez confirmed that funding for Xcel banner and gateway signage will need to be pushed to 2022 in order to commit funding to the Charge Ahead grant for this year. He also noted that work would continue this year on those projects so that they could move forward as soon as we get into 2022 and are able to install the items.

Mr. Books made a motion for an expenditure of \$32,000 in 2021 for reimbursement of \$23,000 in 2022 for the implementation of the Charge Ahead Colorado grant program. Mr. Beal seconded the motion. Vote: unanimous in favor, motion passed.

Mr. Cobbins asked that Mr. Martinez work to get updates to CSG's proposal based on today's discussion so that more info can be sent out and a vote held on the updated info within a week.

Ms. Sayer and Mr. Books asked that the FPBID have a voice on the selection committee for the street mural. Mr. Cobbins noted that the selection committee has not been named but that he was asked to participate but is happy to pass along the info to Ms. Sayer to participate for the Board as he is over committed already.

New Business

A. 2022 Planning Process Discussion Tabled for the September meeting

Public Comments

No other comments from the public were made.

With no further business, Ms. Sayer moved to adjourn. Mr. Books seconded the motion. The meeting adjourned at 11:53AM.

The forgoing minutes constitutes a true and correct copy of the Five Points Business Improvement District. Approved this 8^{th} day of September.

FPBID Board	President	
Attest:		